Registration of a Charge

Company name: SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED

Company number: 01431247

Received for Electronic Filing: 24/05/2017



Details of Charge

Date of creation: 23/05/2017

Charge code: 0143 1247 0006

Persons entitled: ABN AMRO COMMERCIAL FINANCE PLC

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or

undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT

TO S.859G OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION

FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: LAURA D'ALBERTANSON



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 1431247

Charge code: 0143 1247 0006

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 23rd May 2017 and created by SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 24th May 2017.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 25th May 2017

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





DATED _	23 A	May	2017
THE CON	IPANIES LISTEI	D IN SCHEDULE 1	(1)
	RO Commercial	Finance PLC	(2)

GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

in relation to a £6,751,000 Master Facilities Agreement and £1,200,000 Enterprise Finance Guarantee Scheme Facility Agreement

CONTENTS

1	INTERPRETATION	3	
2	SECURED OBLIGATIONS	12	
3	CHARGES	13	
4	SET-OFF	17	
5	UNDERTAKINGS	18	
6	FURTHER ASSURANCE	25	
7	ENFORCEMENT	26	
8	APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR	27	
9	APPOINTMENT AND POWERS OF RECEIVER	27	
10	APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; PURCHASERS	29	
11	INDEMNITIES; EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY; COSTS AND EXPENSES	30	
12	POWER OF ATTORNEY	31	
13	CONTINUING SECURITY AND OTHER MATTERS	32	
14	CURRENCIES	34	
15	MISCELLANEOUS	34	
16	NOTICES	36	
17	AGENCY	36	
18	LAW AND JURISDICTION	37	
SCHEDULE 1 THE OBLIGORS AND SECURITY OBLIGORS		42	
SCHEDULE 2 PROPERTIES		44	
SCHEDULE 3 EQUIPMENT		45	
SCH	SCHEDULE 4 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY		
SCH	SCHEDULE 5 DISPOSAL OF CHARGED ASSETS		

DATE OF GUARANTEE AND DEBENTURE

23rd May

2017

PARTIES

- (1) **THE COMPANIES** whose respective names, registered numbers and registered offices are set out in Schedule 1; and
- (2) ABN AMRO Commercial Finance PLC (Company Number: 2281768) whose registered office is at Sheencroft House, Church Road, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH16 3SN.

THIS DEED WITNESSES THAT:

1 INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

In this deed, unless the context otherwise requires:

"ABN AMRO"

means ABN AMRO Commercial Finance PLC whose registered office is at Sheencroft House, Church Road, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH16 3SN with company number 2281768.

"Account"

means each account other than any Trust Account and/or the Receivables Account from time to time opened or maintained by a Security Obligor at such branch of the Account Bank as ABN AMRO may approve and all rights, benefits and proceeds in respect of such account.

"Account Bank"

means any bank with which a Security Obligor maintains a Receivables Account or one or more Accounts.

"Administrator"

means any person appointed under Schedule B1 Insolvency Act 1986 to manage a Security Obligor's affairs, business and property.

"Authority"

includes any statutory, public, local regulatory or other competent authority, the fire officer, and building regulation control officer, or any court, law or government department.

"Charged Assets"

means, in relation to a Security Obligor, all assets of that Security Obligor described in clauses 3.1 (Security Obligor Fixed Charges), 3.3 (Assignment) and 3.4 (Floating

Charges) and in addition in relation to the Obligor all assets described in clause 3.2 (Fixed Charge on Non-Vesting and Other Debts).

"Collateral Instruments"

means notes, bills of exchange, certificates of deposit and other negotiable and non-negotiable instruments, guarantees and any other documents or instruments which contain or evidence an obligation (with or without security) to pay, discharge or be responsible directly or indirectly for, any liabilities of any person and includes any document or instrument creating or evidencing an Encumbrance.

"Debt"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

"Default Rate"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

"disposal"

includes any sale, lease, sub-lease, assignment or transfer, Encumbrance, the grant of an option or similar right, the grant of any easement, right or privilege, the grant of a licence or permission to assign or sublet, the creation of a trust or other equitable interest or any other proprietary right in favour of a third party, a sharing or parting with possession or occupation whether by way of licence or otherwise and the granting of access to any other person over any Intellectual Property, and any agreement or attempt to do any of the foregoing and "dispose" and "disposition" shall be construed accordingly.

"Encumbrance"

means any mortgage, charge (whether fixed or floating), pledge, lien, hypothecation, standard security, assignment by way of security, trust arrangement for the purpose of providing security or other security interest of any kind securing or preferring any obligation of any person or any other arrangement having the effect of conferring rights of retention or set-off or other disposal rights over an asset (including, without limitation, title transfer and/or retention arrangements having a similar effect) and includes any agreement to create any of the foregoing.

"Enforcement Date"

means the date on which an Event of Default occurs and is continuing as described in the Master Facilities Agreement or, if earlier, the date on which:

- (a) ABN AMRO receives from any person a notice of intention to appoint an Administrator;
- (b) a Security Obligor requests ABN AMRO to appoint an Administrator or a Receiver;
- (c) an application is made for the appointment of an Administrator;

- (d) a petition is presented for an administration order in respect of a Security Obligor;
- (e) an Administrator is appointed in relation to a Security Obligor.

"Environment"

means:

- (a) land, including, without limitation, surface land, sub-surface strata, sea bed and river bed under water (as defined in paragraph (b)) and natural and man-made structures;
- (b) water, including, without limitation, coastal and inland waters, surface waters, aquatic sediment, ground waters and water in drains and sewers;
- (c) air, including, without limitation, air inside buildings and other natural and manmade structures above or below ground; and
- (d) any living systems or organisms supported by the media set out in (a), (b) or (c) above.

"Environmental Claim"

means in relation to the Environment and Environmental Law any written claim, demand, suit or notice from a third party or any order of a court of competent jurisdiction, any suit, claim, demand or notice from any Environmental Regulator any charge or condition imposed by any Environmental Regulator, any notice served by any Environmental Regulator requiring Remediation or any written indication from any Environmental Regulator that a requirement to carry out Remediation will be imposed.

"Environmental Law"

means all European Community, national, state, federal, regional or local laws, common law, statutes, ordinances, directives, directions, regulations, notices, relevant clean-up standards, judgments, decrees or orders, codes of practice, the requirements and conditions of all Environmental Licences both express and implied, covenants, agreements, circulars, guidance notes (statutory or otherwise), judicial and administrative interpretations of each of the foregoing concerning (without limitation) the protection of human health or the Environment or the conditions of the workplace and worker health and safety and process safety, or the generation, transportation, storage, treatment or disposal of any Relevant Substance, as enacted, amended, replaced or supplemented from time to time.

"Environmental Licence"

means any permits, consents, licences, certificates, notices, filings, lodgements, agreements, directions, declarations, exemptions, variations, renewals and amendments and other authorisations and approvals required or provided under Environmental Law.

"Environmental Regulator"

means any governmental entity or other public or quasi-public authority or privatised utility having responsibility for any matters concerning the Environment or Environmental Law.

"Equipment"

means machinery, equipment, furniture, furnishings, fittings and fixtures and other tangible personal property (other than Inventory), including, without limitation, data processing hardware and software, motor vehicles, aircraft, dies, tools, jigs and office equipment, together with all present and future additions thereto, replacements or upgrades thereof, components and auxiliary parts and supplies used or to be used in connection therewith and all substitutes for any of the foregoing, and all manuals, drawings, instructions, warranties and rights with respect thereto wherever any of the foregoing is located and any other asset which would be treated as a fixed asset under GAAP.

"Event of Default"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

"Finance Documents"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

"Fixed Charge Assets"

means the assets of each Security Obligor described in clause 3.1 (Security Obligor Fixed Charges) and the assets of the Obligor described in clause 3.2 (Fixed Charges on Non-Vesting and Other Debts).

"Fixtures"

means, in relation to a Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be), all fixtures and fittings (including trade fixtures and fittings), fixed plant and machinery and other items attached to that property, whether or not constituting a fixture at law.

"GAAP"

means accounting principles which are for the time being generally acceptable in the United Kingdom.

"Guarantee"

means, in relation to a Security Obligor, the obligations of that Security Obligor pursuant to clause 2.1(b) (Covenant to pay; Guarantees) and includes the obligations of that Security Obligor arising by virtue of clauses 2.2 (Security Obligor as principal debtor: indemnity) and 13 (Continuing Security and Other Matters).

"Incapacity"

means, in relation to a person, the insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, winding-up, administration, receivership, amalgamation, reconstruction or other incapacity of that person whatsoever (and, in the case of a partnership, includes the termination or change in the composition of the partnership).

"Indebtedness"

means any obligation for the payment or repayment of money, whether as principal or surety and whether present or future, actual or contingent.

"Insurances"

means, in relation to a Security Obligor, all present and future contracts or policies of insurance (including life assurance policies) taken out by that Security Obligor or in which that Security Obligor from time to time has an interest.

"Intellectual Property"

means all patents (including applications for and rights to apply for patents), trade marks and service marks (whether registered or not) and applications for the same, trade names, registered designs, design rights, semi-conductor topography rights, database rights, copyrights, computer programs, know-how and trade secrets and all other intellectual or intangible property or rights and all licences, agreements and ancillary and connected rights relating to intellectual and intangible property including any renewals, revivals or extensions thereof and wherever in the world subsisting.

"Inventory"

means inventory, goods and merchandise, wherever located, raw materials, work-inprogress, finished goods, returned goods and materials and supplies of any kind, nature or description used in connection with a Security Obligor's business or used in connection with the manufacture, packing, shipping, advertising, selling or finishing of such goods, merchandise and such other specified property, and all documents of title or other documents representing them.

"Leases"

means all agreements for lease, leases, underleases, tenancies or licences to which all or any part of the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) is subject from time to time and "Lease" shall be construed accordingly.

"Master Facilities Agreement"

means the master facilities agreement entered into between the Obligor and ABN AMRO on or around the date hereof pursuant to which certain asset based lending facilities and Debt purchase facilities are provided to the Obligor.

"Non-Vesting Debts"

means all and any Debts purportedly assigned to ABN AMRO pursuant to the Master Facilities Agreement but which do not, for any reason, vest absolutely and effectively in ABN AMRO from time to time.

"Obligors"

means each of the companies details of which are listed Schedule 1 Part 1 (Obligors) and "Obligor" means any one of them...

"Other Debts"

means (at all times excluding all and any Debts vesting in ABN AMRO pursuant to the Master Facilities Agreement and all and any Non-Vesting Debts, and in each case their Related Rights) book and other debts, revenues and claims, whether actual or contingent, whether arising under contracts or in any other manner whatsoever and all things in action which may give rise to any debt, revenue or claim, together with the full benefit of any Encumbrances, Collateral Instruments and any other rights relating thereto (whether as creditor or beneficiary) including, without limitation, reservations of proprietary rights, rights of tracing and unpaid vendor's liens and associated rights.

"Property"

means freehold and leasehold property wherever situate (other than any heritable property in Scotland), and includes all liens, charges, options, agreements, rights and interests in or over such property or the proceeds of sale of such property and all buildings and Fixtures thereon and all rights, easements and privileges appurtenant to, or benefiting, the same and "Properties" means all or any of the same, as the context requires.

"Receivables Account"

means the account with a Security Obligor's bank, financial institution or other person to which the proceeds of realisation of Other Debts are to be paid.

"Receiver"

means, in relation to a Security Obligor, any receiver and/or manager not being an administrative receiver (within the meaning of section 29(2) Insolvency Act 1986) appointed by ABN AMRO pursuant to clause 9.1 (Appointment and powers of Receiver).

"Receivership Assets"

has the meaning given to it in clause 9.1 (Appointment and powers of Receiver).

"Related Rights"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

"Relevant Substance"

means any natural or artificial substance (in solid or liquid form or in the form of a gas or vapour) whether alone or in combination with any substance capable of causing harm to man or any other living organism supported by the Environment or damaging the Environment or public health or welfare including, but not limited to, any controlled, special, hazardous, toxic or dangerous waste.

"Remediation"

means any and all investigating, sampling, analysing, removing, remedying, cleaning-up, abating, containing or ameliorating the presence in or effect on the Environment of any contamination or pollution including, without limitation, the removal, treatment and disposal of material and the treatment and monitoring of ground waters and gases and emissions to air and the obtaining of expert technical and legal advice (including all project management functions) in relation thereto.

"Rentals"

means all rents, profits, income, fees and other sums at any time and from time to time payable by any tenants, under-tenants or licencees to a Security Obligor pursuant to the terms of a Lease excluding any sums payable in respect of (a) services provided to tenants, under-tenants or licensees (b) insurance premiums and (c) reasonable professional fees and expenses.

"Scottish Floating Charge"

means the floating charge in Scottish form to be entered into by the Scottish Security Obligors in favour of ABN AMRO on or around even date herewith.

"Scottish Property"

means heritable and leasehold property situated in Scotland, and includes all liens, charges, options, agreements, rights and interests in or over such property or the proceeds of sale of such property and all buildings and Fixtures thereon and all rights, easements and privileges appurtenant to, or benefiting, the same and "Scottish Properties" means all or any of the same, as the context requires.

"Scottish Security Obligors"

means each of the companies details of which are listed in Schedule 1 Part 3 (Scottish Security Obligors) and any other company which subsequently becomes a party to this deed pursuant to a Supplemental Deed and "Scottish Security Obligor" means any one of them.

"Secured Obligations"

means all moneys, obligations and liabilities covenanted to be paid or discharged under or pursuant to clause 2.1 (Covenant to pay; Guarantees).

"Security Obligors"

means each of the companies details of which are listed in Schedule 1 Part 2 (Security Obligors), each Obligor, the Scottish Security Obligors and any other company which subsequently becomes a party to this deed pursuant to a Supplemental Deed and "Security Obligor" means any one of them.

"Securities"

means stocks, shares, bonds and securities of any kind whatsoever (including warrants and options to acquire or subscribe any of the same) whether marketable or otherwise and all interests (including but not limited to loan capital) in any person, including all allotments, rights, benefits and advantages whatsoever at any time accruing, offered or arising in respect of or incidental to the same and all money or property accruing or offered at any time by way of conversion, redemption, bonus, preference, option, dividend, distribution, interest, or otherwise in respect thereof.

"Specified Person"

means each or all, as the context requires, of each Security Obligor, its Subsidiaries, the occupier of any property from time to time and at any time owned, leased, occupied or otherwise used by such Security Obligor or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective officers.

"Subsidiary"

shall have the meaning given to it in Section 1159 Companies Act 2006.

"Supplemental Deed"

means a deed supplemental to this deed in form and substance satisfactory to ABN AMRO by virtue of which a company becomes bound by this deed in the capacity of a Security Obligor.

"Trust Account"

has the meaning given to it in the Master Facilities Agreement.

1.2 Successors and assigns

The expressions "Obligor", "Security Obligor" and "ABN AMRO", include, where the context admits, their respective successors, and, in the case of ABN AMRO, its transferees and assignees, whether immediate or derivative.

1.3 Headings

Clause headings and the Contents page are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be ignored in the interpretation of this deed.

1.4 Construction of certain terms

In this deed, unless the context otherwise requires:

- references to clauses and Schedules are to be construed as references to the clauses of, and the schedules to, this deed and references to this deed include its schedules:
- (b) references to (or to any specified provision of) this deed or any other document shall be construed as references to this deed, that provision or that document as in force for the time being and as amended, supplemented, replaced or novated in accordance with the terms thereof or, as the case may be, with the agreement of the relevant parties and (where such consent is, by the terms of this deed or the relevant document, required to be obtained as a condition to such amendment being permitted) the prior written consent of ABN AMRO;
- (c) words importing the plural shall include the singular and vice versa;
- (d) references to a time of day are to London time;
- (e) references to "assets" include all or part of any business, undertaking, real property, personal property, uncalled capital and any rights (whether actual or contingent, present or future) to receive, or require delivery of, or otherwise in respect of, any of the foregoing;
- references to a "guarantee" include references to an indemnity or other assurance against financial loss including, without limitation, an obligation to purchase assets or services as a consequence of a default by any other person to pay any Indebtedness and "guaranteed" shall be construed accordingly;
- (g) references to a "person" shall be construed as including references to an individual, firm, company, corporation, unincorporated body of persons or any State or any of its agencies;
- (h) references to a "regulation" include any present or future regulation, rule, directive, requirement, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any agency, authority, central bank or government department or any self-regulatory or other national or supra-national authority;
- (i) references to any enactment shall be deemed to include references to such enactment as re-enacted, amended or extended; and
- (j) in relation to any relevant Property in Northern Ireland, references to the Law of Property Act 1925 shall be construed as references to the corresponding provisions of the Conveyancing and Law of Property Act 1881.

1.5 Master Facilities Agreement definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise defined in this deed, words and expressions defined in the Master Facilities Agreement shall have the same meaning when used in this deed.

1.6 Conflicts and Priorities

The parties to the Deed agree that:

- in the event of any conflict between the terms of this deed and the Master Facilities Agreement, the terms of the Master Facilities Agreement shall prevail; and
- (b) any mortgage, fixed charge or other fixed security which a Security Obligor creates in favour of ABN AMRO will have priority over any floating charge contained in this deed unless ABN AMRO states otherwise on or after its creation.

2 SECURED OBLIGATIONS

2.1 Covenant to pay: Guarantees

Each Security Obligor hereby:

- (a) covenants that it will on demand pay to ABN AMRO all moneys and discharge all obligations and liabilities now or hereafter due, owing or incurred by it to ABN AMRO whether express or implied, present, future or contingent, joint or several, incurred as principal or surety denominated in whatever currency or incurred on any banking account or in any manner whatsoever, including without limitation, all Indebtedness under or pursuant to the Finance Documents when the same become due for payment or discharge and interest (as well after as before judgment) to date of payment at such rates and upon terms as may from time to time be payable and all commission, fees, expenses and other charges and all legal and other costs when the same became due for payment or discharge; and
- (b) irrevocably and unconditionally:
 - (i) guarantees the due performance by each and every other Security Obligor of all its obligations to ABN AMRO including, without limitation, under or pursuant to the Finance Documents; and
 - (ii) guarantees the payment of all moneys now or hereafter due, owing or incurred to ABN AMRO including, without limitation, under or pursuant to the Finance Documents by each other Security Obligor; and
 - (iii) undertakes that, if for any reason any other Security Obligor fails to discharge any such obligation or to pay any such moneys, it shall immediately on demand by ABN AMRO discharge such obligation or, as the case may be, pay such moneys to ABN AMRO.

2.2 Security Obligor as principal debtor: indemnity

As a separate and independent stipulation:

- (a) each Security Obligor irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that if any purported obligation or liability of any other Security Obligor which would have been the subject of its Guarantee had it been valid and enforceable is not or ceases to be valid or enforceable against such other Security Obligor on any ground whatsoever whether or not known to ABN AMRO including, without limitation:
 - (i) any irregular exercise or absence of any corporate power;

- (ii) any lack of authority of, or breach of duty by, any person purporting to act on behalf of such other Security Obligor;
- (iii) any legal or other limitation, whether under the Limitation Acts or otherwise, any disability or Incapacity or any change in the constitution of such other Security Obligor;

and it shall nevertheless be liable in respect of that purported obligation or liability as if the same were fully valid and enforceable and it were a principal debtor in respect thereof.

(b) each Security Obligor hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees to indemnify and keep indemnified ABN AMRO against any loss or liability arising from any failure of a Security Obligor to perform or discharge any such purported obligation or liability of any Security Obligor to ABN AMRO or from any invalidity or unenforceability of any of the same against a Security Obligor.

2.3 Statements of account conclusive

Any statement of account of a Security Obligor, signed as correct by an officer of ABN AMRO, showing the amount of the Secured Obligations of that Security Obligor, shall, in the absence of manifest error, be binding and conclusive on and against all the Security Obligors.

2.4 Interest

Each Security Obligor agrees to pay interest on each amount demanded of it under its Guarantee from the date of such demand until payment (after as well as before judgment) at the Default Rate.

3 CHARGES

3.1 Fixed Charges

Each Security Obligor with full title guarantee, hereby charges to ABN AMRO as a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations (such that each charge listed below is a separate charge in relation to each Security Obligor):

- (a) by way of legal mortgage, the Properties (if any) specified in Schedule 2 (*Properties*);
- (b) by way of equitable mortgage (to the extent not the subject of a legal mortgage by virtue of clause 3.1(a)) all present and future Properties now or from time to time hereafter owned by such Security Obligor or in which such Security Obligor may have an interest, except if the consent of the relevant landlord is required for a Security Obligor to enter into such an equitable mortgage over any Lease (other than any Property listed in Schedule 2) then that Lease shall only be charged by way of equitable mortgage if the relevant Security Obligor has obtained the relevant landlord's consent;
- (c) by way of first fixed charge, the Equipment (if any) specified in Schedule 3 (Equipment) and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to the same;

- (d) by way of first fixed charge, all Equipment (other than any property specified in Schedule 3 (Equipment) now or from time to time hereafter owned by such Security Obligor or in which such Security Obligor has an interest and the benefit of all contracts and warranties relating to the same;
- (e) by way of first fixed charge, all Securities now or from time to time hereafter owned by such Security Obligor or in which the Security Obligor has an interest;
- (f) by way of first fixed charge, all debts now or from time to time hereafter owned by such Security Obligor or in which such Security Obligor has an interest (whether originally owing to such Security Obligor or purchased or otherwise acquired by it) other than the Non-Vesting Debts and the Other Debts;
- (g) by way of first fixed charge any and all amounts from time to time standing to the credit of all present and future accounts of such Security Obligor with any bank, financial institution or other person including, without limitation, the Accounts;
- (h) by way of assignment, all moneys from time to time payable to such Security Obligor under or pursuant to the Insurances including without limitation the right to the refund of any premiums;
- by way of first fixed charge, the proceeds of all other sums of money received by such Security Obligor, other than those specified in clauses 3.1(f), 3.1(g) and/or 3.1(h);
- by way of first fixed charge, the goodwill and uncalled capital of such Security Obligor;
- (k) by way of first fixed charge, the Intellectual Property (if any) specified in Schedule 4 (Intellectual Property); and
- (I) by way of first fixed charge, all Intellectual Property (other than any Intellectual Property specified in Schedule 4 (*Intellectual Property*)), now or from time to time hereafter owned by the Security Obligor or in which the Security Obligor may have an interest.

3.2 Fixed Charges on Non-Vesting and Other Debts

Each Obligor, with full title guarantee, hereby charges to ABN AMRO as a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations (such that each charge listed below is a separate charge):

- (a) by way of first fixed charge, all its Non-Vesting Debts and their proceeds;
- (b) by way of first fixed charge, all Related Rights to all its Non-Vesting Debts;
- by way of fixed charge, all its Other Debts now or from time to time hereafter owned by the Obligor or in which the Obligor has an interest (whether originally owing to the Obligor or purchased or otherwise acquired by it); and
- (d) by way of first fixed charge, the proceeds of collection of all its Other Debts and all moneys standing to the credit of the relevant Receivables Account.

3.3 Assignment

Each Security Obligor with full title, guarantee, hereby assigns to ABN AMRO absolutely:

- (a) the Rentals, together with the benefit of all rights and remedies of the Security Obligor relating to them; and
- (b) the goodwill of the business carried out at the Properties and the Scottish Properties

subject to reassignment on payment and discharge in full of the Secured Obligations.

3.4 Floating Charges

Each Security Obligor with full title guarantee, hereby charges to ABN AMRO by way of first floating charge as a continuing security for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations its undertaking and all its property, assets and rights whatsoever and wheresoever both present and future, including, without limitation, its Inventory other than any property or assets from time to time effectively charged by way of legal mortgage or fixed charge or assignment pursuant to clause 3.1 (Security Obligor Fixed Charges), clause 3.2 (Fixed Charges on Non-Vesting and Other Debts) and clause 3.3 (Assignment) or otherwise pursuant to this deed and including (without limitation and whether or not so effectively charged) any of its property, assets and rights situated in Scotland. In addition, the Scottish Security Obligor is to enter into the Scottish Floating Charge.

3.5 Qualifying Floating Charge

The provisions of paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 Insolvency Act 1986 apply to the floating charges in clause 3.4 (*Floating Charges*), which shall be enforceable at any time on or after the Enforcement Date.

3.6 Restrictions on dealing with Charged Assets

Each Security Obligor hereby covenants that it will not:

- (a) dispose of all or any of its Properties or the Scottish Properties in whole or in part;
- (b) dispose of all or any of the Equipment specified in Schedule 3 (Equipment) except for disposals for which ABN AMRO's consent has been requested in the form set out in Schedule 5 Part 1 (Disposal of Charged Assets) and expressly granted by ABN AMRO in the form set out in Schedule 5 Part 2 (Form of letter of Request to dispose of Charged Assets);
- (c) dispose of all or any of the other Fixed Charge Assets without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO;
- (d) dispose of its Inventory or any other Charged Asset the disposal of which is not otherwise restricted by the express terms of this deed otherwise than for full value in the ordinary course of business;
- (e) create or attempt to create or permit to subsist in favour of any person other than ABN AMRO any Encumbrance on or affecting the Charged Assets or any part

thereof except a lien arising by operation of law in the ordinary course of trading over property other than land.

3.7 Automatic conversion of floating charge

So far as permitted by law and notwithstanding anything expressed or implied in this deed:

- (a) if a Security Obligor creates or attempts to create any Encumbrance over all or any of the Charged Assets without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO or if any person levies or attempts to levy any distress, execution, sequestration or other process or does or attempts to do any diligence in execution against any of the Charged Assets, the floating charge created by clause 3.4 (Floating Charges) over the Properties, Scottish Properties or asset concerned shall thereupon automatically without notice be converted into a fixed charge; and
- (b) the floating charges created by clause 3.4 (*Floating Charges*) shall automatically be converted into a fixed charge on the Enforcement Date.

3.8 Conversion of floating charge by notice

Notwithstanding anything expressed or implied in this deed but without prejudice to clause 3.7 (*Automatic conversion of floating charge*), ABN AMRO shall be entitled at any time by giving notice in writing to that effect to a Security Obligor to convert the floating charge created by that Security Obligor over all or any part of the Charged Assets into a fixed charge as regards the assets specified in such notice.

3.9 Land Registry

(a) Each Security Obligor hereby consents to ABN AMRO's application to the Chief Land Registrar in form RX1 for the registration of the following restriction against each of the registered titles specified in Schedule 2 (*Properties*) (and against any title to any unregistered Property specified in Schedule 2 (*Properties*) which is or ought to be the subject of a first registration of title at the Land Registry at the date of this deed):

"RESTRICTION:

No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [date] in favour of ABN AMRO Finance Plc referred to in the charges register or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its attorney, director or secretary.";

- (b) In respect of any Property charged pursuant to clauses 3.1(a) and/or 3.1(b) title to which is registered at the Land Registry, each Security Obligor hereby represents and warrants that the security created by this deed does not contravene any of the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association or any other constitutional documents of such Security Obligor.
- (c) Each Security Obligor consents, and will procure the consent of the proprietor of any charge registered against any titles specified in Schedule 2 (*Properties*), to ABN AMRO's application to the Chief Land Registrar in form RX1 for the

registration of the following restriction against such registered charges (and against any title to any unregistered Property specified in Schedule 2 (*Properties*) which is or ought to be the subject of a first registration at the Land Registry at the date of this deed).

"RESTRICTION:

No disposition by the proprietor of the registered charge dated [date] (referred to above) is to be registered without a written consent signed on behalf of ABN AMRO Finance Plc of Sheencroft House, Church Road, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH16 3SN by its attorney, director or secretary".

3.10 Further Advances

Any obligation on the part of ABN AMRO to make further advances to the Obligor under the Master Facilities Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated in this deed for the purposes of section 94(1)(c) Law of Property Act 1925 and ABN AMRO may apply in form CH2 to the Chief Land Registrar to enter a note of such obligation on the register of each of the titles referred to in clause 3.9 (Land Registry).

3.11 The Securities

- (a) Each Security Obligor will if so requested by ABN AMRO transfer all or any Securities from time to time owned by it to such nominees or agents as ABN AMRO may select.
- (b) Until the Enforcement Date ABN AMRO will:
 - (i) hold all dividends, distributions, interest and other moneys paid on and received by it in respect of any Securities for the account of the relevant Security Obligor and will, subject to any right of set-off and to clause 7.3 (*Enforcement in relation to Securities*), pay such dividends, distributions, interest and other moneys to such Security Obligor upon request; and
 - (ii) unless a Potential Default has occurred and is continuing ABN AMRO may exercise all voting and other rights and powers attached to any Securities as the relevant Security Obligor may from time to time in writing reasonably direct provided that ABN AMRO shall be under no obligation to comply with any such direction where compliance would, in ABN AMRO's opinion, be prejudicial to the security created by this deed.

4 SET-OFF

4.1 Set-off

Each Security Obligor hereby agrees that ABN AMRO may at any time without notice, notwithstanding any settlement of account or other matter whatsoever, combine or consolidate all or any of its then existing accounts wheresoever situate (including the Receivables Account, the Accounts in the name of ABN AMRO or of such Security Obligor jointly with others), whether such accounts are current, deposit, loan or of any other nature whatsoever, whether they are subject to notice or not and whether they are denominated in sterling or in any other currency, and set-off or transfer any sum standing to the credit of any one or more such accounts in or towards satisfaction of the Secured

Obligations which, to the extent not then payable, shall automatically become payable to the extent necessary to effect such set-off.

4.2 Purchase of currencies

For the purpose of clause 4.1 (Set-off), each Security Obligor authorises ABN AMRO to purchase with the moneys standing to the credit of such accounts such other currencies as may be necessary to effect such applications.

5 UNDERTAKINGS

5.1 Each Security Obligor hereby undertakes with ABN AMRO that during the continuance of this security such Security Obligor will and will procure that its Subsidiaries will:

(a) Master Facilities Agreement undertakings

- (i) Comply with the provisions of the Master Facilities Agreement (as if the same were set out in this deed *mutatis mutandis*) to the extent that such provisions are expressed to be binding on the Security Obligor.
- (ii) Each Security Obligor (other than the Obligors) hereby:-
 - (A) gives the warranties and representations set out at conditions 4.1 to 4.6, 4.8 to 4.11 and 4.14 (General Warranties and Representations) inclusive of Schedule 1 (Common Terms) of the Master Facilities Agreement on the Commencement Date and for so long as any advances or facilities are outstanding under the Master Facilities Agreement;
 - (B) gives the covenants set out at conditions 5.1, 5.2, 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6 (General Covenants) of Schedule 1 (Common Terms) of the Master Facilities Agreement;
 - (C) gives the undertakings set out at 6.1, 6.4, 6.5, 6.6, 6.9 and 6.10 (General Undertakings) of Schedule 1 (Common Terms) of the Master Facilities Agreement;

as if the same were set out in this deed *mutatis mutandis* and (save for the references to "Obligor" in condition 4.14) references in those conditions to the "Obligor" are deemed to be references to the relevant Security Obligor and references to the "Agreement" are deemed to be references to this deed.

(b) Consents and licences

Obtain or cause to be obtained, maintain in full force and effect and comply in all material respects with the conditions and restrictions (if any) imposed in, or in connection with, every consent, authorisation, licence or approval of governmental or public bodies or authorities or courts and do, or cause to be done, all other acts and things which may from time to time be necessary or desirable under applicable law for the continued due performance of all its obligations under this deed.

(c) Non-Vesting Debts

In relation to the Obligors only, only deal with its Non-Vesting Debts and the proceeds thereof and the Related Rights thereto as if they had been assigned to ABN AMRO under the Master Facilities Agreement and in particular will not bank or deal with any payments in respect of any of its Non-Vesting Debts except in accordance with the Master Facilities Agreement.

(d) Other Debts

- (i) In relation to each of the Obligors only, collect in the ordinary course of its business as agent for ABN AMRO in a proper and efficient manner and pay into the Receivables Account or the Account(s) or such other account as ABN AMRO may from time to time specify all moneys which it may receive in respect of its Other Debts forthwith on receipt, the Obligor acknowledging that it may not, without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO, withdraw any such moneys from such account or compromise, compound, vary, discharge, postpone or release any of its Other Debts or waive its right of action in connection therewith or do or omit to do anything which may delay or prejudice the full recovery thereof, other than granting extensions to normal trade credit in accordance with the Obligor's reasonable and prudent management of its debtors on a normal commercial basis.
- (ii) Execute an assignment of the Security Obligor 's Other Debts in favour of ABN AMRO in such form as ABN AMRO requires.

(e) Deposit of deeds

Deposit with ABN AMRO (to be held at the risk of such Security Obligor):

- (i) all deeds and documents of title relating to its Properties or the Scottish Properties and the Insurances relating thereto;
- (ii) promptly upon ABN AMRO's request, all certificates and documents of title relating to the Securities owned by it and such undated deeds of transfer in blank and other documents as ABN AMRO may from time to time require for perfecting the title of ABN AMRO to such Securities (duly executed by or signed on behalf of the registered holder) or for vesting or enabling it to vest the same in itself or its nominees or in any purchaser; and
- (iii) all such other documents relating to its Charged Assets as ABN AMRO may from time to time require.

(f) Conduct of business

 (i) Conduct and carry on its business in a proper and efficient manner and keep or cause or procure to be kept proper books of account and not make any material alteration in the nature or mode of conduct of any such business; and

(ii) ensure its centre of main interest for the purposes of Council Regulation (EC) No 1346/2000 of 29 May 2000 on Insolvency Proceedings including, but not limited to, its headquarter functions is located at all times within England and Wales and not move its centre of main interest to any other jurisdiction without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO which ABN AMRO may withhold at ABN AMRO's sole discretion or otherwise diminish in or divert from England and Wales the substantive management and control of its business or any of its Properties or its Scottish Properties.

(g) Compliance with covenants etc

Observe and perform all covenants, requirements and obligations from time to time imposed on, applicable to or otherwise affecting its Charged Assets and/or the use, ownership, occupation, possession, operation, repair, maintenance or other enjoyment or exploitation of its Charged Assets whether imposed by statute, law or regulation, contract, lease, licence, grant or otherwise, carry out all registrations or renewals and generally do all other acts and things (including the taking of legal proceedings) necessary or desirable to maintain, defend or preserve its right, title and interest to and in its Charged Assets without infringement by any third party and not without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) enter into any onerous or restrictive obligations affecting any of the same or agree any rent review relating to any interest in any of its Properties or its Scottish Properties.

(h) Alteration or development of Properties

Not make any structural or material alteration to or to the user of any of the Properties or the Scottish Properties or do or permit to be done anything which is a "development" within the meaning of the Town and Country Planning Acts for the time being in force or any orders or regulations under such acts or do or permit or omit to be done any act, matter or thing as a consequence of which any provision of any statute, bye-law, order or regulation or any condition of any consent, licence, permission or approval (whether of a public or private nature) from time to time in force imposed on, applicable to or otherwise affecting any of the Properties or the Scottish Properties is or may be infringed.

(i) Maintenance of buildings and Equipment

- (i) Keep all its buildings and Equipment in good and substantial repair and in good working order and condition and permit ABN AMRO and its agents or representatives to enter and view their state and condition; and
- (ii) Upon request by ABN AMRO, affix to the Equipment listed in Schedule 3 (*Equipment*) a prominent and fireproof notice stating that the Equipment in guestion is charged to ABN AMRO by way of fixed charge.

(j) Insurance

- (i) Insure and keep insured its Properties, the Scottish Properties, Equipment and all other tangible assets of an insurable nature at its own expense to the full replacement or reinstatement value thereof from time to time (including, where applicable, the cost of demolition and site clearance, architects', surveyors' and other professional fees and incidental expenses in connection with replacement or reinstatement) against loss or damage (including loss of rent and profits) by fire, storm, lightning, explosion, riot, civil commotion, malicious damage, impact, flood, burst pipes, aircraft and other aerial devices or articles dropped therefrom and such other risks and contingencies as ABN AMRO shall from time to time request;
- (ii) maintain third party and public liability insurance and such other insurance as are normally maintained by prudent companies carrying on businesses similar to those of such Security Obligor;
- (iii) duly and promptly pay all premiums and other moneys necessary for effecting and keeping up such insurances and on demand produce to ABN AMRO the relevant policies and evidence of such payments and comply in all other respects with the terms and conditions of the relevant policies including without limitation any stipulations or restrictions as to the use and/or operation of any asset;
- (iv) all Insurances shall be effected with insurers approved by ABN AMRO in writing and with the interest of ABN AMRO noted on the policy (or, if ABN AMRO so requires, in the joint names of each Security Obligor and ABN AMRO) and with the policy containing such provisions for the protection of ABN AMRO as ABN AMRO may require;
- (v) in the case of any Property or Scottish Property held under a lease the terms of which prohibit the Security Obligor from complying with the obligations referred to in clause 5.1(j)(i) (*Insurance*) procure (where it is empowered to do so) or otherwise use all reasonable efforts to procure the maintenance by the landlord (or other third party) of such insurance obligations in accordance with the provisions of the relevant lease.

(k) Enforcement of Leases

Enforce the prompt payment of all Rentals payable by any tenant, licensee or occupant of all or any part of the Property or Scottish Property and ensure that such tenant, licensee or occupant complies with all of the terms of the Lease under which he leases or occupies the Property or Scottish Property, as the case may be.

(I) Assignment of Rentals

If and for so long as the whole or any part of the Property or Scottish Property is from time to time let, leased or licensed;

(i) give irrevocable instructions in such form as ABN AMRO may from time to time require to any person employed by the relevant Security Obligor to manage the Property or Scottish Property, instructing such person to collect the Rentals, to pay them to such account as ABN AMRO may require and to provide such information in respect of the Rentals as ABN AMRO may require and cause any such person to sign and deliver to ABN AMRO an acknowledgement and agreement in such form as ABN AMRO may reasonably require acknowledging to ABN AMRO that it has received such instructions and agrees to comply with them;

- (ii) if so required by ABN AMRO, appoint such person as ABN AMRO, acting reasonably, may approve or specify to manage the Property or Scottish Property as the case may be and to collect the Rentals or remove any person so acting and appoint another person instead on terms approved by ABN AMRO;
- (iii) immediately if called upon to do so by ABN AMRO, at the Security Obligor's expense delivery to ABN AMRO such particulars as to the amount and nature of the Rentals (including, without limitation, the identity and addresses of the tenants, under-tenants or licensees) as ABN AMRO may from time to time require;
- (iv) not without the prior consent of ABN AMRO remove or suspend any person engaged in the management of the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) or appoint another person to manage the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) except as provided under clause 5.1(i) (Maintenance of buildings and Equipment); and
- (v) if so required by ABN AMRO, at the relevant Security Obligor's expense, serve written notice on the tenants, under-tenants or licensees of the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) requiring them to pay all Rentals payable by them in the future to the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) to ABN AMRO or as ABN AMRO may direct.

(m) Property outgoings

Punctually pay, or cause to be paid, and indemnify ABN AMRO and any Receiver or Administrator (on a several basis) against, all present and future rent, rates, taxes, duties, charges, assessments, impositions and outgoings whatsoever (whether imposed by agreement, statute or otherwise) now or at any time during the continuance of this security payable in respect of its Properties or Scottish Properties (as the case may be) or any part thereof or by the owner or occupier thereof.

(n) Possession of Properties and Scottish Properties

Without prejudice to the generality of clause 3.6(a) (Restrictions on dealing with Charged Assets), not without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO part with possession of the whole or any part of its Properties and/or Scottish Properties or permit any person:

(i) to be registered (jointly with such Security Obligor or otherwise) as proprietor under the Land Registration Acts or otherwise of any of its Properties or Scottish Properties nor create or permit to arise any unregistered interests which override first registration or registered dispositions affecting the same within the definition in those acts or within any corresponding legislation in any other part of the United Kingdom; or

(ii) to become entitled to any right, easement, covenant, interest or other title encumbrance which might adversely affect the use, value or marketability of any of its Properties or Scottish Properties.

(o) Variation of leasehold interests

Not without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO vary, surrender, cancel or dispose of, or permit to be forfeit, any leasehold interest in any of its Properties or Scottish Properties.

(p) Acquisition of property

Immediately inform ABN AMRO before contracting to purchase any estate or interest in freehold, leasehold or heritable property and supply ABN AMRO with such details of the purchase as ABN AMRO may from time to time request.

(q) Environmental Law and Licences

Obtain and maintain in full force and effect and comply with all Environmental Law and Environmental Licences applicable to its business and the business of all other Specified Persons and promptly on receipt provide ABN AMRO with copies of all such Environmental Licences and the terms and conditions thereof and any variations or amendments thereto.

(r) Environmental Claims and Obligations

Promptly on becoming aware of it inform ABN AMRO of any Environmental Claim which is made or threatened against it or any other Specified Person and of any requirement which is imposed pursuant to any Environmental Licence or Environmental Law which requires such Security Obligor or any other Specified Person to make any investment or capital expenditure or to take or desist from taking any action in either case in respect of any of the Charged Assets in order to comply with Environmental Law or such Environmental Licence.

(s) Access

Procure that ABN AMRO and its agents or representatives are allowed access at reasonable times to inspect its Properties and, where ABN AMRO reasonably believes it to be necessary, to require testing or the taking of samples at the expense of such Security Obligor to verify its compliance with Environmental Law applicable to it and/or its Environmental Licences.

(t) Relevant Substances

Notify ABN AMRO forthwith upon becoming aware of any Relevant Substance present at, on or under or brought on to any of its Properties or Scottish Properties which might give rise to any Environmental Claim, or which might lead to or cause a change in value of any of its Properties or any of its Charged Assets.

(u) Intellectual Property

Without prejudice to the generality of clause 5.1(g) (Compliance with Covenants etc)

- take all necessary action to safeguard, prosecute and maintain its rights, present and future, in or relating to all its Intellectual Property including, without limitation, observing all covenants and stipulations relating thereto and paying all applicable application and renewal fees, licence fees and other outgoings;
- (ii) use all reasonable efforts to effect registration of applications for registration of any registered design, patent, trade mark and service mark and keep ABN AMRO informed of events relevant to any such application and not without the prior consent in writing of ABN AMRO permit any Intellectual Property to be abandoned or cancelled, to lapse or to be liable to any claim of abandonment for non-use or otherwise;
- (iii) notify ABN AMRO forthwith of any infringement or suspected infringement or any challenge to the validity of any of its Intellectual Property which may come to its notice, supply ABN AMRO with all information in its possession relating thereto and take all steps necessary to prevent or bring to an end any such infringement and to defend any challenge to the validity of any such rights.

(v) Copies of notices

Notify ABN AMRO forthwith if it receives any notice, order, permission or proposal issued or sent by any person or Authority in connection with the Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) including, without limitation, any notice under Section 146 Law of Property Act 1925 and at that Security Obligor's own cost take all reasonable steps to comply with or make, or join with ABN AMRO in making, such objections or representations against or in respect of any such notice, order or proposal as ABN AMRO shall direct and defend or settle any proceedings as ABN AMRO shall direct.

(w) Jeopardy

Not do or cause or permit to be done anything which may in any way depreciate, jeopardise or otherwise prejudice the value or marketability of any of its Charged Assets.

(x) Landlord Consent

In the event that a Security Obligor has an Interest in a Lease that is not the subject of an equitable mortgage pursuant to Clause 3.1(b) as the relevant landlord's consent has not been obtained, the Security Obligor shall use reasonable endeavours to obtain the required consent and shall update ABN AMRO upon request as to their progress.

5.2 Power to remedy

If a Security Obligor defaults at any time in complying with any of its obligations contained in this deed, ABN AMRO shall, without prejudice to any other rights arising as a consequence of such default, be entitled (but not bound) to make good such default and such Security Obligor hereby irrevocably authorises ABN AMRO and its employees and agents by way of security to do all such things (including, without limitation, entering such Security Obligor's property) necessary or desirable in connection therewith. Any moneys so expended by ABN AMRO shall be repayable by such Security Obligor to ABN AMRO on demand together with interest at the Default Rate from the date of payment by ABN AMRO until such repayment, both before and after judgment. No exercise by ABN AMRO of its powers under this clause 5.2 shall make it liable to account as a mortgagee in possession.

6 FURTHER ASSURANCE

6.1 Further assurance

Each Security Obligor shall if and when at any time required by ABN AMRO (acting reasonably) execute such further Encumbrances and assurances in favour or for the benefit of ABN AMRO and do all such acts and things as ABN AMRO shall from time to time require over or in relation to all or any of the Charged Assets to:

- (a) secure the Secured Obligations;
- (b) perfect or protect ABN AMRO's security over the Charged Assets or any part thereof:
- (c) facilitate the realisation of the same; and
- (d) to give effect to the terms of this deed.

6.2 Certain documentary requirements

Such further Encumbrances and assurances shall be prepared by or on behalf of ABN AMRO at the expense of the Obligor (such expenses to be reasonably and properly incurred) and shall contain:

- (a) an immediate power of sale without notice;
- (b) a clause excluding section 93 Law of Property Act 1925 and the restrictions contained in section 103 Law of Property Act 1925; and
- (c) such other clauses for the benefit of ABN AMRO as ABN AMRO may require.

6.3 Implied Covenants

The provisions of clauses 6.1 (Further assurance) and 6.2 (Certain documentary requirements) shall be in addition to and not in substitution for the covenants for further assurance deemed to be included in this deed by virtue of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

7 ENFORCEMENT

7.1 Enforcement

- (a) At any time on or after the Enforcement Date ABN AMRO shall be entitled to make demand for payment of the Secured Obligations and, if such demand is not met in full, to enforce the Security (in whole or in part) created by this deed.
- (b) Without limitation to any other or subsequent rights that ABN AMRO may have to enforce the security contained in this deed (in whole or in part), if ABN AMRO waives an Event of Default in writing it shall be deemed to have agreed not to enforce this security in relation to the specific occurrence of that specific Event of Default.

7.2 Powers of ABN AMRO on enforcement

At any time on or after the Enforcement Date ABN AMRO may, without further notice, without the restrictions contained in section 103 Law of Property Act 1925 and whether or not an Administrator or a Receiver shall have been appointed, exercise all the powers conferred upon mortgagees by the Law of Property Act 1925 as varied or extended by this deed and all the powers and discretions conferred by this deed on a Receiver either expressly or by reference.

7.3 Enforcement in relation to Securities

Without limiting the generality of clause 7.2 (*Powers of ABN AMRO on enforcement*) ABN AMRO and its nominees at the discretion of ABN AMRO may at any time on or after the Enforcement Date exercise, without further notice to or any authority from the Security Obligor, in respect of the Securities any voting rights and all powers given to trustees by the Trustee Act 2000 in respect of securities or property subject to a trust and any powers or rights which may be exercisable by the person in whose name any of the Securities is registered or by the bearer thereof for the time being.

7.4 Subsequent Encumbrances

If ABN AMRO receives notice of any subsequent Encumbrance affecting all or any of the Charged Assets, ABN AMRO may open a new account for the Security Obligor concerned. If it does not do so then, unless ABN AMRO gives express written notice to the contrary to the Security Obligor concerned, it shall nevertheless be treated as if it had opened a new account at the time when it received such notice and as from that time all payments made by or on behalf of the Security Obligor concerned to ABN AMRO shall be credited or be treated as having been credited to the new account and shall not operate to reduce the amount due from that Security Obligor to ABN AMRO at the time when it received such notice.

7.5 Statutory power of leasing

ABN AMRO shall have the power to lease and make agreements for leases at a premium or otherwise, to accept surrenders of leases and to grant options on such terms as ABN AMRO shall consider expedient and without the need to observe any of the provisions of sections 99 and 100 Law of Property Act 1925.

7.6 Fixtures

At any time on or after the Enforcement Date or if requested by a Security Obligor ABN AMRO may sever, and sell separately, any Fixtures from any of the Security Obligor's Properties or Scottish Properties to which they are attached.

8 APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATOR

At any time on or after the Enforcement Date ABN AMRO may appoint an Administrator of the Security Obligor for the purposes and upon the terms contained in Schedule B1 Insolvency Act 1986.

9 APPOINTMENT AND POWERS OF RECEIVER

9.1 Appointment

At any time on or after the Enforcement Date ABN AMRO may, save as mentioned in this clause 9.1, by instrument in writing executed as a deed or under the hand of any director or other duly authorised officer appoint any person to be a Receiver of such part of the Charged Assets of a Security Obligor, not being the whole or substantially the whole of that Security Obligor's property within the meaning of section 29 Insolvency Act 1986 as ABN AMRO may specify (the "Receivership Assets"). Any such appointment may be made subject to such qualifications, limitations and/or exceptions (either generally or in relation to specific assets or classes of asset) as may be specified in the instrument effecting the appointment. Where more than one Receiver is appointed, each joint Receiver shall have power to act severally, independently of any other joint Receivers, except to the extent that ABN AMRO may specify to the contrary in the appointment. ABN AMRO may remove any Receiver so appointed and appoint another in his place. ABN AMRO shall not, however, be entitled to appoint a Receiver solely as a result of the obtaining of a moratorium or of anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium, under the Insolvency Act 2000 without the leave of the court.

9.2 Receiver as agent

A Receiver shall be the agent of the Security Obligor in respect of which he is appointed and such Security Obligor shall be solely responsible for his acts or defaults and for his remuneration.

9.3 Powers of Receiver

A Receiver shall have the power to do or omit to do on behalf of the Security Obligor in respect of which he is appointed anything which the Security Obligor itself could do or omit to do if the Receiver had not been appointed, notwithstanding the liquidation of the Security Obligor. In particular (but without limitation) a Receiver shall have power to:

- (a) take possession of, collect and get in the Receivership Assets and, for that purpose, to take such proceedings as may seem to him expedient;
- (b) sell or otherwise dispose of the Receivership Assets by public auction or private auction or private contract or, in Scotland, to sell, feu, hire out or otherwise dispose of the Receivership Assets by public roup or private bargain;
- (c) raise or borrow money and grant security therefor over the Receivership Assets;

- appoint a solicitor or accountant or other professionally qualified person to assist him in the performance of his functions;
- bring or defend any action or other legal proceedings in the name and on behalf of the Security Obligor;
- (f) refer to arbitration any question affecting the Security Obligor;
- effect and maintain insurances in respect of the business, Properties and Scottish Properties of the Security Obligor;
- (h) use the Security Obligor's seal;
- do all acts and to execute in the name and on behalf of the Company any deed, receipt or other document;
- draw, accept, make and endorse any bill of exchange or promissory note in the name and on behalf of the Security Obligor;
- (k) appoint any agent to do any business which he is unable to do himself or which can more conveniently be done by an agent and employ and dismiss employees;
- do all such things (including the carrying out of works) as may be necessary for the realisation of the Receivership Assets;
- (m) make any payment which is necessary or incidental to the performance of his functions;
- (n) carry on the business of the Security Obligor;
- (o) establish Subsidiaries of the Security Obligor;
- (p) transfer to Subsidiaries of the Security Obligor the whole or any part of the business or Receivership Assets;
- (q) grant or accept a surrender of a lease or tenancy of any of the Receivership Assets and to take a lease or tenancy of any properties required or convenient for the business of the Security Obligor;
- (r) make any arrangement or compromise on behalf of the Security Obligor in respect of the Receivership Assets:
- (s) call up any uncalled capital of the Security Obligor;
- rank and claim in the bankruptcy, insolvency, sequestration or liquidation of any person indebted to the Security Obligor and to receive dividends, and to accede to trust deeds for the creditors of any such person.

The Receiver shall also have all powers from time to time conferred on receivers by statute without, in the case of powers conferred by the Law of Property Act 1925, the restrictions contained in Section 103 of that Act

9.4 Remuneration

ABN AMRO may from time to time determine the remuneration of any Receiver and section 109(6) Law of Property Act 1925 shall be varied accordingly. A Receiver shall be entitled to remuneration appropriate to the work and responsibilities involved upon the basis of charging from time to time adopted by the Receiver in accordance with the current practice of his firm.

9.5 Insurance moneys

Any insurance moneys received by a Receiver shall be applied in accordance with clause 10.2 (*Insurance proceeds*) and accordingly section 109(8) Law of Property Act 1925 shall not apply.

10 APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; PURCHASERS

10.1 Application of proceeds

All moneys received by ABN AMRO or by any Receiver shall, subject to clause 13.5 (Suspense accounts), be applied, after the discharge of the remuneration and expenses of the Receiver and all liabilities having priority to the Secured Obligations, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations in such manner as ABN AMRO may from time to time determine.

10.2 Insurance proceeds

All insurance moneys (including any received by a Receiver) deriving from any of the Insurances (whether before or after the Enforcement Date) shall be paid to ABN AMRO (or if not paid by the insurers directly to ABN AMRO shall be held on trust for ABN AMRO) and shall be applied:

- (a) unless a Potential Default or an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, in replacing, restoring or reinstating the property or assets destroyed, damaged or lost (any deficiency being made good by the Security Obligor which owned the same); or
- (b) if a Potential Default or an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, in reduction of the Secured Obligations in such manner and order as ABN AMRO may determine except where the Security Obligor concerned is required (as landlord or tenant) to apply such insurance moneys in accordance with any lease of any of the Charged Assets in which event they shall be so applied.

10.3 Protection of purchasers

No purchaser or other person shall be bound or concerned to see or enquire whether the right of ABN AMRO or any Administrator or Receiver to exercise any of the powers conferred by this deed has arisen or be concerned with notice to the contrary or with the propriety of the exercise or purported exercise of such powers.

11 INDEMNITIES; EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY; COSTS AND EXPENSES

11.1 Enforcement costs

The Security Obligor's hereby jointly and severally undertake with ABN AMRO to pay on demand all costs, charges and expenses incurred by or on behalf of ABN AMRO or by any Administrator or Receiver in or about the enforcement or preservation or attempted enforcement or preservation of any of the security created by or pursuant to this deed or any of the Charged Assets on a full indemnity basis, together with interest at the Default Rate from the date on which such costs, charges or expenses are so incurred until the date of payment by a Security Obligor (as well after as before judgment).

11.2 No liability as mortgagee in possession

Neither ABN AMRO nor any Administrator nor any Receiver shall be liable to account as mortgagee in possession in respect of all or any of the Charged Assets or be liable for any loss upon realisation or for any neglect or default of any nature whatsoever for which a mortgagee may be liable as such.

11.3 Recovery of Non-Vesting and Other Debts

Neither ABN AMRO nor any Administrator nor any Receiver shall have any liability or responsibility of any kind to any Security Obligor arising out of the exercise or non-exercise of the right to enforce recovery of the Non-Vesting and Other Debts or shall be obliged to make any enquiry as to the sufficiency of any sums received in respect of any Non-Vesting and Other Debts or to make any claims or take any other action to collect or enforce the same.

11.4 Indemnity

Each Security Obligor hereby undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified ABN AMRO, any Administrator or Receiver and any attorney, agent or other person appointed by ABN AMRO under this deed and ABN AMRO's officers and employees (each an "Indemnified Party") in respect of all costs, losses, actions, claims, expenses, demands or liabilities whether in contract, tort or otherwise and whether arising at common law, in equity or by statute which may be incurred by, or made against, any of the Indemnified Parties (or by or against any manager, agent, officer or employee for whose liability, act or omission any of them may be answerable) at any time relating to or arising directly or indirectly out of or as a consequence of:

- (a) anything done or omitted in the exercise or purported exercise of the powers contained in this deed; or
- (b) any breach by a Security Obligor of any of its obligations under this deed; or
- (c) an Environmental Claim made or asserted against an Indemnified Party which would not have arisen if this deed had not been executed and which was not caused by the gross negligence or wilful default of the relevant Indemnified Party.

11.5 Third Party Contract Rights

- (a) Each Indemnified Party referred to in clause 11.4 (*Indemnity*) shall have the benefit and may enforce the terms of this deed in accordance with the provisions of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
- (b) Subject to clause 11.5(a) (*Third Party Contract Rights*), a person who is not a party to this deed has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this deed.
- (c) Notwithstanding clause 11.5(a) (*Third Party Contract Rights*) or any other provision of this deed, ABN AMRO and the Obligor shall be entitled to agree variations to this deed without notifying the other Indemnified Parties or seeking the consent of such Indemnified Parties or any of them to the variation.

11.6 Value Added Tax

All fees, costs and expenses payable under or pursuant to this deed shall be paid together with an amount equal to any value added tax payable by ABN AMRO in respect of the same. Any value added tax chargeable in respect of any services supplied by ABN AMRO under this deed shall, on delivery of a value added tax invoice, be paid in addition to any sum agreed to be paid under this deed.

12 POWER OF ATTORNEY

12.1 Appointment

Each Security Obligor by way of security hereby irrevocably appoints each of ABN AMRO and any Receiver severally to be its attorney in its name and on its behalf:

- (a) to do all things which the Security Obligor may be required to do under this deed;
- (b) to execute and complete any documents or instruments which ABN AMRO or such Receiver may require for perfecting the title of ABN AMRO to the Charged Assets or for vesting the same in ABN AMRO, its nominees or any purchaser;
- (c) to sign, execute, seal and deliver and otherwise perfect any further security document referred to in clause 6 (Further assurance); and
- (d) otherwise generally to sign, seal, execute and deliver all deeds, assurances, agreements and documents and to do all acts and things which may be required for the full exercise of all or any of the powers conferred on ABN AMRO or a Receiver under this deed or which may be deemed expedient by ABN AMRO or a Receiver in connection with any disposition, realisation or getting in by ABN AMRO or such Receiver of the Receivership Assets or in connection with any other exercise of any power under this deed and including, but not limited to a power in favour of any Receiver to dispose for value of any of the assets of that Security Obligor over which such Receiver may not have been appointed and which are located at Property or Scottish Property (as the case may be) over which he has been appointed, without being liable for any losses suffered by Security Obligor, or any part thereof.

12.2 Ratification

Each Security Obligor ratifies and confirms (and agrees to do so) whatever any such attorney of it shall do, or attempt to do, in the exercise of all or any of the powers, authorised and discretions pursuant to clause 12.1 (Appointment).

13 CONTINUING SECURITY AND OTHER MATTERS

13.1 Continuing security

This deed and the obligations of each Security Obligor under this deed (including, without limitation, the Guarantees) shall extend to the ultimate balance from time to time owing in respect of the Secured Obligations and shall be a continuing security notwithstanding any intermediate payment, partial settlement or other matter whatsoever.

13.2 Liability unconditional

The liability of each Security Obligor shall not be affected nor shall any Guarantee be discharged or reduced by reason of:

- the Incapacity or any change in the name, style or constitution of any other Security Obligor or other person liable;
- (b) ABN AMRO granting any time, indulgence or concession to, or compounding with, discharging, releasing or varying the liability of any other Security Obligor or any other person liable; or
- (c) any amendment, variation or waiver (however material or fundamental and whether it increases a Security Obligor's liability to ABN AMRO or otherwise) of the Finance Documents; or
- (d) any act or omission which would not have discharged or affected the liability of such Security Obligor had it been a principal debtor instead of a guarantor or anything done or omitted which but for this provision might operate to exonerate such Security Obligor.

13.3 Collateral Instruments

ABN AMRO shall not be obliged to make any claim or demand on any Security Obligor or any other person liable or to resort to any Collateral Instrument or other means of payment before enforcing this deed and no action taken or omitted in connection with any such Collateral Instrument or other means of payment shall discharge, reduce, prejudice or affect the liability of any Security Obligor (including, without limitation, the liability of the Security Obligors under the Guarantees). ABN AMRO shall not be obliged to account for any money or other property received or recovered in consequence of any enforcement or realisation of any such Collateral Instrument or other means of payment.

13.4 Waiver of Companies' rights

Until all the Secured Obligations have been paid, discharged or satisfied in full (and notwithstanding payment of a dividend in any liquidation or under any compromise or arrangement or the discharge by any Security Obligor of its liability under its Guarantee)

each Security Obligor agrees that without the prior written consent of ABN AMRO it will not:

- (a) exercise any rights of subrogation, contribution or indemnity against any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable;
- (b) demand or accept any Collateral Instrument to be executed in respect of any of its obligations under this deed or any other Indebtedness now or hereafter due to such Security Obligor from any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable;
- (c) take any step to enforce any right against any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable in respect of any such Secured Obligations;
- (d) negotiate, assign, charge or otherwise dispose of any monies, obligations or liabilities now or at any future time due or owing to it by any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any person party to any Encumbrance held or to be held as security for any of the Secured Obligations or any Encumbrance, guarantee, indemnity or other assurance in respect thereof;
- (e) exercise any right of set-off or counter-claim against any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable; or
- (f) unless it does so following and in accordance with the prior written direction of ABN AMRO claim or prove or vote as a creditor in competition with ABN AMRO in the liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceeding of any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable or have the benefit of, or share in, any payment from or composition with, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable or any Collateral Instrument now or hereafter held by ABN AMRO for any obligations or liabilities of any Obligor, any other Security Obligor or any other person liable,

and the Security Obligors agree that if any Security Obligor receives any sums in contravention of this clause 13.4 (*Waiver of Companies' rights*) or following compliance with any direction under clause 13.4(e) (*Waiver of Companies' rights*) it shall hold them on trust for ABN AMRO, separately of its own monies, to be applied by ABN AMRO in or towards satisfaction of the secured obligations in such order or manner as ABN AMRO may specify.

13.5 Suspense accounts

Any money received in connection with a Guarantee or pursuant to the realisation of any security created pursuant to this deed (whether before or after any Incapacity of a Security Obligor or any other person liable) may be placed to the credit of an interest-bearing suspense account with a view to preserving the rights of ABN AMRO to prove for the whole of its claims against the Companies or any other person liable.

13.6 Settlements Conditional

Any release, discharge or settlement between any one or more of the Companies and ABN AMRO shall be conditional upon no security, disposition or payment to ABN AMRO by any of the Security Obligors or any other person being void, set aside or ordered to be refunded pursuant to any enactment or law relating to liquidation, administration or

insolvency or for any other reason whatsoever and if such condition is not fulfilled ABN AMRO shall be entitled to enforce this deed as if such release, discharge or settlement had not occurred and any such payment had not been made.

13.7 Security Obligors to deliver up certain property

If, contrary to clause 13.4 (*Waiver of Companies' rights*), any Security Obligor takes or receives the benefit of any security or receives or recovers any money or other property, such security, money or other property shall be held on trust for ABN AMRO and shall be delivered to ABN AMRO on demand.

14 CURRENCIES

All moneys received or held by ABN AMRO or by a Receiver under this deed at any time on or after the Enforcement Date in a currency other than a currency in which the Secured Obligations are denominated may from time to time be sold for such one or more of the currencies in which the Secured Obligations are denominated as ABN AMRO or Receiver considers necessary or desirable and each Security Obligor shall jointly and severally indemnify ABN AMRO against the full cost (including all commissions, charges and expenses) incurred in relation to such sale. Neither ABN AMRO nor any Receiver shall have any liability to any Security Obligor in respect of any loss resulting from any fluctuation in exchange rates after any such sale.

15 MISCELLANEOUS

15.1 Joint and several liabilities

The covenants, agreements, obligations and liabilities of the Security Obligors contained in this deed or implied on their part are joint and several and shall be construed accordingly.

15.2 Liabilities survive deficiencies and releases

Each Security Obligor agrees to be bound by this deed notwithstanding that any person intended to execute or to be bound by this deed may not do so or may not be effectually bound and notwithstanding that any guarantees or charges contained in this deed may be terminated or released or may be or become invalid or unenforceable against any other Security Obligor whether or not the deficiency is known to ABN AMRO.

15.3 Remedies Cumulative

No failure or delay on the part of ABN AMRO to exercise any power, right or remedy shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or any partial exercise or waiver of any power, right or remedy preclude its further exercise or the exercise of any other power, right or remedy.

15.4 Statutory power of leasing

During the continuance of this security the statutory and any other powers of leasing, letting, entering into agreements for leases or lettings and accepting or agreeing to accept surrenders of leases or tenancies shall not be exercisable by any Security Obligor in relation to the Charged Assets or any part thereof.

15.5 Successors and assigns

Any appointment or removal of a Receiver under clause 9 (Appointment and powers of Receiver) and any consents under this deed may be made or given in writing signed or sealed by any successors or assigns of ABN AMRO and accordingly each Security Obligor hereby irrevocably appoints each successor and assign of ABN AMRO to be its attorney in the terms and for the purposes set out in clause 12 (Power of Attorney).

15.6 Consolidation

Section 93 Law of Property Act 1925 shall not apply to the security created by this deed or to any security given to ABN AMRO pursuant to this deed.

15.7 Security Obligor Payments

The Security Obligors will make all payments due under this deed in full without set-off, retention or counterclaim whatsoever and howsoever arising, fee and clear of deductions and withholdings on the due date and to such account of ABN AMRO as ABN AMRO may from time to time specify. The provisions of clauses 4.5 (Obligor *Payments*) and 4.6 (Deduction or withholding) of the Real Property Facility Terms and Conditions, set out in Schedule 5 of the Master Facilities Agreement, shall be deemed to be incorporated in this deed as if references in such clauses to the Obligors were references to each Company and references to "the Finance Documents" were references to this deed.

15.8 Deduction or Withholding

If a Security Obligor is compelled by law to make any set-off, retention, counterclaim, deduction or withholding, the Security Obligor shall forthwith pay to ABN AMRO such additional amount as shall be required to ensure that ABN AMRO shall receive in aggregate the amount it would have received but for such deduction or withholding.

15.9 Reorganisation

This deed shall remain binding on each Security Obligor notwithstanding any change in the constitution of ABN AMRO or its absorption in, or amalgamation with, or the acquisition of all or part of its undertaking by, any other person, or any reconstruction or reorganisation of any kind. The security granted by this deed shall remain valid and effective in all respects in favour of ABN AMRO and any assignee, transferee or other successor in title of ABN AMRO in the same manner as if such assignee, transferee or other successor in title had been named in this deed as a party instead of, or in addition to, ABN AMRO.

15.10 Unfettered discretion

Any liability or power which may be exercised or any determination which may be made under this deed by ABN AMRO may be exercised or made in its absolute and unfettered discretion and it shall not be obliged to give reasons therefor.

15.11 Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989

For the purposes of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989 any provisions of the Finance Documents relating to any disposition of an interest in land shall be deemed to be incorporated in this deed.

15.12 Counterparts

This deed may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this deed.

16 NOTICES

16.1 General

Any notice or demand to be served or made by ABN AMRO under the terms of this deed shall be validly served or made:

- if handed to the Security Obligor or to any officer of or partner in the Security Obligor as appropriate;
- (b) if delivered, or sent by facsimile transmission or post, to the address stated in Schedule 1 of this deed or the address of the Security Obligor last known to ABN AMRO or to any address at which the Security Obligor carries on business; or
- (c) if sent by electronic mail to the Security Obligor's email address advised to ABN AMRO.

16.2 Effective notice

- (a) Notice or demands served personally by ABN AMRO shall take effect upon such service and those made by facsimile shall be treated as being received upon transmission. Notices sent and demands made by ABN AMRO by post or electronic mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received no later than 10.00 am on the next Banking Day following the posting or despatch.
- (b) Any notice to be served on ABN AMRO must be in writing and delivered by recorded delivery post to the registered office of ABN AMRO or such other office, as ABN AMRO shall notify to the Security obligor for the purpose of this subclause. They shall take effect at the time of delivery so recorded.

17 AGENCY

- (a) Each Security Obligor (other than the Obligor) by its execution of this deed irrevocably appoints the Obligor to act on its behalf as its agent in relation to the Finance Documents and irrevocably authorises;
 - (i) the Obligor on its behalf to supply all information concerning itself contemplated by this deed to ABN AMRO and to give all notices and instructions, to make such agreements and to effect the relevant amendments, supplements and variations capable of being given, made or effected by the Obligor notwithstanding that they may affect the Security Obligor, without further reference to or the consent of that Security Obligor; and
 - (ii) ABN AMRO to give any notice, demand or other communication to that Security Obligor pursuant to the Finance Documents to the Obligor,

and in each case the Security Obligor shall be bound as though the Security Obligor itself had given the notices and instructions or executed or made the agreements or effected the amendments, supplements or variations, or received the relevant notice, demand or other communication.

(b) Every act, omission, agreement, undertaking, settlement, waiver, amendment, supplement, variation, notice or other communication given or made by the Obligor or given to the Obligor under any Finance Document on behalf of another Security Obligor or in connection with any Finance Document (whether or not known to any other Security Obligor and whether occurring before or after such other Security Obligor became a Security Obligor) shall be binding for all purposes on that Security Obligor as if that Security Obligor had expressly made, given or concurred with it. In the event of any conflict between any notices or other communications of the Obligor and any other Security Obligor, those of the Obligor shall prevail.

18 LAW AND JURISDICTION

The proper law of this deed both as to form and substance shall be the law of England and Wales and the Security Obligors hereby submit to the jurisdiction of the English courts but without prejudice to the right of ABN AMRO to bring proceedings in the courts of any territory in which a Security Obligor carries on business or may have Collateral.

IN WITNESS of which this deed has been executed and, on the date set out above, delivered as a deed.

SIGNED as a deed by SAXON QUALITY FOODS LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of a witness and delivered when

dated:

Director Signature :

Name

ANDREW HAYES

Witness Signature

Witness Name CHATTEN

Witness Address

EMERPRISE WAY, NOTINGHAM

Witness Occupation : SOLIC ITOR

SIGNED as a deed by PIE TOM'S LIMITED

acting by a director in the presence of a

witness and delivered when dated:

Director

Signature : Name

ANDREW HAVES

Witness Signature

Witness Name : JEWNY CHATEN

Witness Address : GELDAEDS LLP, THE ARC

ENTERPRISE WAY, NOTINGHAM

Witness Occupation : SOLICHOR

SIGNED as a deed by EASY EATS (UK) LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of a witness and delivered when

dated:

Director

Signature Name

ANOREW HAYES

Witness Signature

Witness Name

JENHY CHATTEN

Witness Address

ENTERPEISE WAY, MOTINGHAM

Witness Occupation

: BOLL CITOR

SIGNED as a deed by SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of a witness and delivered when dated:

Director Signature : Name

ANDREW HAYES

Witness Signature Witness Name : JENHY CHATTEN

Witness Address : CELDARDS LLP, THE ARC

BUTERPRISE WHY, NOTTINGHAM

Witness Occupation : SOLICITOR

SIGNED as a deed by ABBEYDALE FOOD GROUP LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of a witness and delivered when dated:

Director Signature Name

ANDREW HAYER

Witness Signature Witness Name JOUNY ONATION

Witness Address ENTERPRISE WAY, NOTTINGHAM

Witness Occupation : SOLICITOR

SIGNED as a deed by SUMMIT FOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED acting by a director in the presence of a witness and delivered when dated:

Director Signature : Name

ANDREW HAYES

Witness Signature Witness Name JENNY CHATTEN Witness Address

GELDARDS LLP THE ARC ENTERPRISE WAY, POTTINGHAM

Witness Occupation : SOLICITOR SIGNED as a deed ABN AMRO COMMERCIAL FINANCE PLC acting by two directors or by one director and the secretary, and delivered when dated

DirectorSignature
Name

Name

Director/SecretarySignature

The Obligors and Security Obligors

Part 1

Obligors

Name	Registered Number	Registered Office	Fax Number
SAXON QUALITY FOODS LIMITED	07374852	5 ATKINSONS WAY. FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE. SCUNTHORPE. SOUTH HUMBERSIDE. DN15 8QJ	
PIE TOM'S LIMITED	02558309	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 8QJ	
EASY EATS (UK) LIMITED	02467855	170 WALTON SUMMIT ROAD, BAMBER BRIDGE, PRESTON, PR5 8AH	
SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED	01431247	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 8QJ	

Part 2

Security Obligors

Name	Registered Number	Registered Office	Fax Number
SAXON QUALITY FOODS LIMITED	07374852	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 BQJ	
PIE TOM'S LIMITED	02558309	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE,	

EASY EATS (UK) LIMITED	02467855	SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 8QJ 170 WALTON SUMMIT ROAD, BAMBER BRIDGE, PRESTON, PR5 8AH	
SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED	01431247	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 8QJ	
ABBEYDALE FOOD GROUP LIMITED	07360769	5 ATKINSONS WAY, FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, SCUNTHORPE, SOUTH HUMBERSIDE, DN15 8QJ	
SUMMIT FOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED	02942608	170 WALTON SUMMIT ROAD, BAMBER BRIDGE, PRESTON, PR5 8AH	A44

Part 3
Scottish Security Obligors

Name	Registered Number	Registered Office	Fax Number
grind a service and a service of the service of the			
Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable	Not applicable

Properties

Pie Tom's Limited

5 Atkinsons Way,

Foxhills Industrial Estate,

Scunthorpe,

DN15 8QJ with

Title Number HS257801

Easy Eats (UK) Limited

186 Bradkirk Place,

Walton Summit,

Bamber Bridge,

Preston,

PR5 8AJ

Title Number LAN 161244

Equipment

SAXON QUALITY FOODS LIMITED FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE 5 ATKINSONS WAYS SCUNTHORPE NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE DN15 8QJ

OVEN IN AREA

ACRIVARN Bakemaster 6 Gas Fired Six Rack Oven

ACRIVARN Bakemaster 4X2 Gas Fired Four Rack Oven

Stainless & Mild Steel Wire Trays & Dollies (throughout)

HYGIENE BAY

NILFISK CAS31 Floor Scrubber

CSG 3000kg Platform Scales

OVEN OUT AREA

Three Extract Fan Tray Cooling in Chamber

Air Input Fan & Ducting

Three Extract Roof Fans

PRODUCTION

Three Belt Potato Scooping Conveyors (One stored in warehouse)

Belt Cross Conveyor

Ledged Belt Conveyor Elevator

COAT & FRY ABA650 Wire Belt Conveyor Serial no. 3600 (1995).

COAT & FRY Thermal Oil Heated Fryer Serial no. 3410 with Circulation pump, extract fans & ducting

Wire Belt Delivery Cross Conveyor

Stainless Steel Oil Tank

Plastic Trays & Dollies (throughout)

SNB/ SAFELINE Bridge Metal Detector/ Checkweigher Serial no. 3250 (2013) with conveyor (Not in use)

CONVEYOR BELT TECHNOLOGY Modular Interlock Belt Conveyor Serial no. FBCD-AC01 1A (2007) with ANSER U2 Ink Jet Coder

SYSPAL 516006036 Lazy Susan Packing Table Serial no. 03118.1 (2013)

CEIA TH3 Bridge Type Metal Detector & Conveyor Serial no. 20300225027

MARKEM IMAJE 5800 Ink Jet Coder Serial no. US131600.81

THAMES PACKAGING Saxon 5 Electric Heat Sealer, & Conveyor Serial no. 1451/6551

WASH ROOM

OUVER DOUGLAS PAN700 Cabinet Tray Washer Serial no. 93/2931

PASSAGE

GEA KUBA Market SP Three Fan Chiller & Refrigeration Compressor outside

COMPRESSOR HOUSE

INGERSOLL RAND Total Air Packaged Air Compressor Serial no. 2176033 (2008)

ABBOTT Welded Steel 1000 litre Air Receiver Serial no. A51969 (2009) (outside)

DMF Receiver Mounted Air Compressor

Gas Fired Thermal Oil Heater

WAREHOUSE

Stored Machinery
S F RIGGS AUTOPAK Filler
TURBO TOOLS Filler

PS Pallet Racking

PANELTEX 31 Pallet Container Freezer Unit Serial no. PA3893/01 (2001)

Welded Steel Waste Oil Tank

MOTOR VEHICLE

IVECO Davly 2.3 HPI Panel Van Registration No. FX55 FKD

PIE TOMS LIMITED FOXHILLS INDUSTRIAL ESTATE 5 ATKINSONS WAY SCUNTHORPE NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE DN15 8QJ

PEA ROOM

GIUSTI 270 gallon Part Jacketed Stainless Steel Cooker Mixer Serial no. J6020B

FPL Diaphragm Pump

SPIROFLOW SI Conveyor Spiral Conveyor Elevator Serial no. 1009508 with feed hopper

LINE EQUIPMENT Form, Fill & Seal Machine with Volumetric Feeder and MARKEM IMAIE SmartDate X40 Overprinter

Ledged Interlock Best Conveyor Elevator

FABRIFORM Belt Conveyor

18 Plastic Dolavs

PRODUCTION

Ten Stainless Steel Euro Tub Trucks

One Pneumatic Transfer Pump

TREPKO 9000 8X2 Head Pot Filler & Sealer Serial no. 112 (1997) with slat conveyor

Belt Conveyor

ANSER UZ Inkjet coder

Plastic Trays and Dollies

SUMMIT FOODS LIMITED UNITS 170 & 171 WALTON SUMMIT ROAD BAMBER BRIDGE PRESTON PRS 8AH

UNIT 170 ENTRANCE

LOD/GE Sherpa-la 1500kg Goods Hoist

Serial no 74882522 (2002)

BASTRA Two Trolley Steam Cooker and Stainless Steel Racks

HANDTMANN VF2008 Vacuum Filler

Serial no. 1113

BOSET LBML594 Boot Washer Serial no. 1196 (2001)

FREEZER

Two SEARLE Three Fan Chillers

MEAT INWARDS

Two HYDRAUFLAKER Frozen Meat Flakers

One Stainless Steel Screw Conveyor & Elevator

(WEILER) Pre-Mincer

EXCELL QW Electronic Platform Scales

COOLERS & CONDENSERS Single Fan Ceiting Chiller

Starnless Steel Euro Tub Trucks (throughout)

MEAT PREPARATION

NADRA TOWSKI Swing Loader PZ-3/250 Portable Bin Lift & Tip Unit. Serial no. 1074 (2016)

SCANIRO E7 Bin Lift & Tip Unit Serial no. 1324

THOMPSON 6400 Mincer-Grinder Serial no. 6400101.007 (2010)

Bin Lift & Tip Unit

THOMPSON Mincer Grinder

EXCELL OW Electronic Platform Scales

HOEGGER ALPINA (P8200-900-111) Bowl Chopper

HANDTMANN VF616 Vacuum Filler Serial no.

HANDTMANN PVLS141-01 Sausage Linker Serial no. 16587 (2000)

FORMAX F6 Forming Machine Serial no. 239 (1995)

TRI-PHASE Spiral Freeze

KG VT800M 800kg Goods Hoist Serial no. 9556 (2000)

VSD Inkjet Star TC20/40 Tumbles

Two COOLERS & CONDENSERS Coiling Two Fan Chillers

2 COLD ROOMS

Two x2 Fan Chillers

MEAT BALL PRODUCTION

Conveyor Meat Scorer

DC NORRIS 800 Bin Lift & Tip Unit Serial no. DCN006 (1991)

FORMAX F-400 Former Serial no. E70M50

ABM MDB Meatball Rounding Machine Serial no. 3779 (2016)

Ledged Belt Elevating Conveyor

WIREBELT COMPANY 90° Wire Belt Conveyor Serial no. 2001

KOPPENS SCB600/ 400 Retracting Wire Belt Conveyor Feeder Serial no. 354

BERIEF 08093.02.00.00 Thermal Oil Heated Continuous Oven (2006)

COOLERS & CONDENSERS Single Fan Ceiting Chiller

OVEN DELIVERY AREA

HEAT & CONTROL RB-30-1-FH Rotary Brander

Serial no. 5198-0453 (1998)

DMK DONATI Bulk Bag Chain Hoist & Runway

PACKING ROOMS

Ledged Belt Elevating Conveyor.

WARD BEKKER MD0612 Six Head x Two Pan Multihead Weigher

Serial no. 2126.2 (1999)

INNOTECH 2500 Vertical Form Fill & Seal Machine

Serial no. 10199263 (1999) with ALLEN overprinter

Interlock Belt Elevating Conveyor

PRINS/ APEX Checkweigher

CINTEX Bridge Type Metal Detector & Conveyor

SIAT 52-5 Case Taper Serial no. 52471 (2007)

Belt Conveyor, with ALS Label Applicator and SAUVEN Codajet inkjet Coder

Serial no. 5007/F/8001

COOLERS & CONDENSERS Single Fan Ceiling Chiller

ARTEC Two Fan Ceiling Chiller

HIGH CARE CHANGING

BOBET LBM LS 94 Boot Washer

Serial no. 1056 (1997)

ENTRANCE

LANSING BAGNALL FRER6.1/1.0/TL Electronic Fork Lift Reach Truck

Serial no. 84112943

BLAST CHILLER

SEARLE Two Fan Blast Chiller

HOLD CHILLER

COILS & COOLERS Eco Two Fare Cooling Chiller

PREPARATION ROOM

GROTE 715 Multi Slicer Serial no. 1057083

FEUMA Shredder

GROTE 5/A-522 Slicer Serial no. 1048966

Two COVE SH-1 Pulling Machines Serial no. 156188 (2014)

FREEZER

Two x Four Fan Chillers

HOLD CHILL

SEARLE Two Fan Chiller

PACKING

ILAPAK Carrera 1000 PC Flowpack Wrapper

Serial no. 02 144 (2002)

interlocking Belt Conveyor

BRADMAN LAKE SISO Cartoner

Serjal no. 6162 0801

MARKEM (MAJE 9410 Inkjet Coder Serial no. FR15360200 (2015)

LOMA (Q3/ CW3 Combined Bridge Type Metal Detector & Checkweigher Serial no. MC304-16373D (2011)

Ledged Interlock Belt Conveyor to Spiral

Three Decline Wire Mesh Conveyors from Oven

(TRIPHASE) Twin Spiral Chiller

Ledged interlock Belt Waste Conveyor

(LAPAK Carrera 1000 PC Flowpack Wrapper Senal no. 03 104 (2003)

Belt Assembly Conveyor, with side tables

ILAPAK Carrera 1000 PC Flowpack Wrapper Senal no. 02.071 Small Belt Cross Conveyor

Interlock Belt Feed Conveyor

BRADMAN LAKE \$180 Cartoner Serial no. 6395-04-04

MARKEM I MAJE 9232 Inkjet Coder Serial no. FR13480068 (2013)

LOMA (Q3/ CW3 Combined Bridge Type Metal Detector & Checkweigher

GROTE Slicer

Belt Assembly Conveyor, with double rack over

Belt Assembly Conveyor

Belt Feed Conveyor

MULTIVAC (RS30) Thermoforming Tray Sealer

CONVERGING SOLUTIONS Integrator Converging Conveyor Serial no. 5160 (2004)

ALPHA-PACK Belt Labelling Conveyor with bottom labeller (2014)

MARKEM IMAJE 9222 Inkjet Coder Serial no. FR1408235 (2014)

LOMA IQ3/ CW3 Combined Bridge Type Metal Detector & Checkweigher

LOMA IQ3 Bridge Type Metal Detector & Conveyor Serial no. MD301-193990 (2012)

SEARLE Four Fan Ceiling Chiller

SEARLE Three Fan Chiller

SEARLE Two Fan Ceiling Chiller

HIGH RISK GOODS INWARD

CRUSADER SAN200 Sanitising Tunnel Serial no. 399-SAN2 A/301/010 (2002)

Plastic dolay type Containers (throughout)

HIGH CARE PACKING

ROOM

interlock Belt Conveyor

SIAT Case Taper

PWI PACHWAY PW-5525 Case Taper

Serial no. 160924 (2016) with roller delivery conveyor

FREEZER

27 Drive in Pallet Rack Sections

Two x Two Fan Chillers

SEARLE Four Fan Chiller

LANSING Electric Fork Lift Reach Truck

AIR COMPRESSOR

ROOM

GARDNER DENVER VS70 EANA Package Air Compressor

Serial no. F007228 (2006)

LANSING E16 Electric Fork Lift Truck Serial no. 3650060178 (1996)

with charger

REFIGERATION COMPRESSOR HOUSE

EP REFRIGERATION/ PROFROID Refrigeration Compressor Plant (2015)

including five SOkW compressors, two vessels and controls

FULTON Electropack BP48 Electric Boiler

Serial no. B3583 (2008)

Water Treatment Plant

PROFROID Four Fan Condenser (on roof)

Two HC COILS SPECIAL NOVI 1560 Six Fair Condensers (outside)

Serial no. 78501 (2015)

ROOF REFRIGERATION HOUSE

DANFOSS Optyma Twin Condenser

Two DANFOSS Optyma Single Fan condensers

Two Fan Condenser

Vessels

WASHER HOUSE

KARCHER HDS 9/14-4STE60 Power Washer Serial no. 010012 (2013)

KARCHER HDS9/14-ST Eco Power Washer

Serial no. 010676 (2008)

KARCHER HDS9/14-4ST Power Washer

Serial no. 010112 (2014)

KARCHER HDS9/14-45T Power Washer

Serial no. 010089 (2013)

BOILER HOUSE

BABCOCK WANSON TPC 1000 Line Gas Fired Thermal Oil Heater

Serial no. 06.39.2654 (2006)

Chimney, Circulating Pumps, Piping & Valves

OUTSIDE

BERGMANN MPB907 SN/20 Waste Compactor

Serial no. 118E004021-07 (2007)

TONY TEAM TT240 Waste Compactor

BITZER Refrigeration Compressor Set (2001)

COOLERS & CONDENSERS Three Fan Condenser Unit

Three FRASTCOLD Refrigeration Compressors

BITZER UH135/6H-25.2Y Refrigeration Compressor Set

Serial no. 15830887

Two DANFOSS Optyma Plus Single Fan Condensers

Six DANFOSS Optyma Plus Two Fan Condensers

Refrigeration Equipment throughout Unit 170

UNIT 171

WAREHOUSE

Being Pre Assembled :-

SAIMO Ten Head Multihead Weigher

SAIMO SVF-1400 Vertical Form Fill & Seal Machine Serial no. 210020024 P1207 306 (2012) with DOMINO V3201 overprinter

UNDER14 Electric Fork Lift Reach Truck Serial no. G1X115T51704 (2006)

LANSING E165 Electric Fork Lift Truck Serial no. 324A09526116 (1990)

Stored Machinery including BRADMAN LAKE Cartoner ILAPAK Carrera 1000 Flow Wrapper REW: Tumbler 1000 litre

Two Deck Travelling Oven VIBROW EIGH Weigh Feeder

Case Taper

Pallet Racking

COLD ROOM

KOBOL Two Fan Chiller and DANFOSS Optyma Plus Condenser

FITTERS SHOP

TOWNSEND 2600 Sausage Deskinner

Serial no. 035B with collection bin

GROTE S/A 530E Slicer Serial no. 1099025

INGERSOLL RAND SSR MLS.S Package Air Compressor

REDNAL 200 little Air Receiver Serial no. 5508/016 (2011)

MOTOR VEHICLES

FORD S-Max Titanium X Sport A MPV Registration no NV10 TXU

FORD Transit 85T280 Refrigerated Panel Van Registration no OFZ 9773

VAUXHALL Meriva SE Turbo 118 MPV Registration no DU60 MKM

DAF LFS5 220 15t Refrigerated Box Van Registration no PO59 WRW

DAF LF45 150 7.5t Refrigerated Box Van Registration no RX06 BBE

DAF LF45 180 7.5t Refrigerated Box Van Registration no MX08 PGV

MERCEDES BENZ Sprinter 411CD: Refrigerated Panel Van Registration No MXOS MJU

EASY EATS (UK) LIMITED
UNITS 185 & 186
WALTON SUMMIT CENTRE
BAMBER BRIDGHE
PRESTON
PRS 8A1

PREPARATION

Stainless Steel Horizontal Mixer

MANCA Stainless Steel Horizontal Mixer

MANCA Stainless Steel Horizontal Mixer

MANCA RM90 Stainless Steel Horizontal Mixer Serial no. 3517 (2010)

JAYMECH JFM400 Cheese Grater Serial no. 400-016

MADO Ultra Stamless Steel Mixer

FOOD LOGISTIK MS120-5 Dicer Serial no. 2060984 (2000)

GROTE 613-VS Slicer Serial no. 1130874

HC COILS Three Fan Ceiling Chiller Unit

CHEL ROOM

HC COILS Three Fan Ceiling Chiller Unit

WASH ROOM

COMENDA Cabinet Washer

PACKING

GROTE 613-VS Slicer Serial no. 1131518

ILPRA Foodpack FP Speedy V/G Gas Flush Tray Sealer Serial no. FP8246 (2009)

LOMA Bridge Type Metal Detector & Conveyor

NILMA 500 Portable Mixer

PROSEAL GTR-V Rotary Table Tray Sealer Serial no. 1880 (2010)

HENKELMAN Polar 2-40 Vacuum Sealer Serial no. P200606023 (2006)

Belt Assembly Conveyor, with rack over

PFM Tornado BBLD SS Gas Flush Flowrapper Serial no. C5060 (1999)

LOMA (Q3 Bridge Type Metal Detector & Conveyor Serial no. MD301-10831D (2009)

Two DEIGHTON Industrial Spreadmatic Buttering Machines Serial no's 11/01/001 13/03/009

Two Belt Assembly Conveyors, with double rack over

RUTLAND 1500 3A Sandwich Cutter & Multistrand Compression Conveyor Serial no. 7522 (2000)

Sandwich Cutter & Multistrand Compression Conveyor

itPRA Foodpack 1401/09V/G Gas Flush Sealing Machine Serial no. FP8902 (2010)

FORTRESS Phantom Bridge Type Conveyor Metal Detector

PROSEAL GT1V Gas Flush Vacuum Sealing Machine Serial no. 2212 with MARKEM IMAJE SmartDate X40 overprinter

FORTRESS Phantom Bridge Type Conveyor Metal Detector Serial no. M13082

Four HC COILS Two Fan Ceiling Chiller Units

Boot Washer

LOW RISK PACKING

STAINLESS STEEL WORLD Lazy Susan Packing Table

WEYFRINGE A4+/30QP Two Head Auto Printer Labeller & Conveyor Serial no. 059322 ZZ5

Lazy Susan Packing Table

PACK LEA Pt.-221D Two Head Auto Printer Labeller & Conveyor Serial no. 044-02Pt.22/DOD/00/2 with MARKEM IMAJE SmartDate X40 overprinter (2014)

AREA Auto Labellier & Conveyor Serial no. 04-4518-01

GRAHAM COTB128-40 Auto Two Head Printer Labeller & Conveyor Serial no. 1919 (2001) with MARKEM (MAJE SmartDate2 overprinter

PWI PACKWAY PW-5535 Case Taper Serial no. 1012052 (2010) MtNiPACK Sealmatic 56T Conveyor Fed Heat Sealer Serial no. 001098 (2009)

MINIPACK Tunnel 50 Shrink Wrap Tunnel Serial no. 004438 (2009)

MARKEM IMAJE 9222 Inkjet Printer & Belt Conveyor Serial no. FR14390270 (2014)

Two HC COILS Three Fan Ceiling Chillers

PACKING AREA

SEALED AIR/ MINIPACK TORRE Opti4500 Conveyor. Fed Heat Sealer Serial no. 000917 (2007)

SEALED AIR Opti 1300 Shrink Wrap Tunnel Serial no. 003635 (2007)

CH纵L ROOM

Pallet Racking (throughout)

Two HC COILS Two Fan Chillers

FREEZER

Two LUVE Four Fan Chiller Units

BREAD CHALLER

Conveyor Sanitising Tunnel

HC COILS Three Fan Ceiting Chiller

Rotary Mayonnaise Pump & Piping

DESPATCH CHALER

Two HC COILS Two Fan Chillers

DESPATCH

KARCHER Professional 0.300-101.0 Floor Scrubber Serial no. 010484 (2015)

NISSAN NO1L 150 Electric Fork Lift Truck Serial no. 785738 with charger

UNDE E16C-01 Electric Fork Lift Truck Serial no. H2X3B6W06193 (2008) with charger

COMPRESSOR

INGERSOLL RAND Total Air Package Receiver Mounted Air Compressor Serial no. 2125925 (2010)

HOVAL 367 litre Air Receiver Serial no. 58165 196925 (1994)

FINI RD32.A/AC Air Dryer Serial no. 150017919 (2015)

BUSCH R5 Vacuum Pump

REDNAL D4 Receiver Mounted Air Compressor (2008)

ANDREWS RFF280GB Gas Fired Water Heater

Serial no. LB33945657

OUTSIDE

Seven DANFOSS Optyma Plus Single Fan Condenser

Five DANFOSS Optyma Plus Two Fan Condensers

Refrigeration Equipment throughout Unit 185

UNIT 171 WARDHOUSE

Stored Machinery including:
Cheese Grater
Two KRUMBEIN Bread Slicers
GROTE 613 Slicer
BUTCHER BOY Mixer Grinder
AFT AC40 Aligner Cutter
ILAPAK Oelta Flowrapper
UNK Labeller

Two Lazy Susan Packing Tables

Two FORTRESS Bridge type Metal Detectors and conveyors

Two Assembly Belt Conveyors and Racks over

Refrigeration equipment

Intellectual Property

[to be inserted once established]

Disposal of Charged Assets

Part 1

Form of letter of Request to dispose of Charged Assets

To:	ABN AMRO Commercial Fi Sheencroft House 10 -12 Church Road Haywards Heath West Sussex RH16 3SN	nance PLC Date:
Dear Sirs		
We refer to clause 3.1 of the guarantee an ("Debenture").	d debenture dated [•] granted to you by us
We hereby request your consent to disposing the Debenture). We wish to dispose of [a	e of [asset] being a Fixed Chasset] to [purchaser] [describe	narged Asset (as defined e terms].
Please confirm your consent to the above of	lisposal by signing and return	ing the enclosed letter.
Yours faithfully		
andereness on on Wassandan Care		
for and on behalf of		
[Company]		

Part 2

Form of letter of consent to dispose of Charged Assets

To:	[Company]	
	Date:	
Dear Sirs		
We refer to your letter of [date], a copy of which	ch is attached.	
We hereby consent to the disposal of [asset [specify conditions of consent to disposal].	et] to [purchaser] [on terms] [on the condition that	
Yours faithfully		
Section of the sectio		
for and on behalf of		
ABN AMRO Commercial Finance PLC		